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Probably the best known verb in the world: "To be or not to be..." 

Forms of To Be 

  Present 
Past Perfect 

Form 

Continuous 

Form 

I am was have / had been am / was being 

he / she / it is was has / had been is / was being 

you / we / they are were have / had been are / were being 

Normally we use the verb to be to show the status or characteristics of something or 

someone (as a stative verb). It says what I am, what you are or what something is. 

PRESENT SIMPLE (STATIVE) 

I am a 

teacher. 

You are a 

student. 

He 

/She is a 

student. 

It is a car. 
We are all 

teachers. 
They are students. 

PAST SIMPLE (STATIVE) 

I was a 

student. 

You were a 

student. 

He 

/She was a 

student. 

It was a 

nice day 

yesterday. 

We were all 

students 

once. 

They were students. 

FUTURE SIMPLE (STATIVE) 

I will 

be a 

student. 

You will 

be a 

teacher. 

He / 

She will 

be a 

teacher. 

It will 

be nice 

later. 

We will 

be teachers. 

They will 

bestudents. 

When used with the present participle of other verbs it describes actions that are or 

were still continuing - auxiliary verb be [+ ing form of the main verb]. 

PRESENT CONTINUOUS (ACTIVE) 

I am 

being silly. 

You are 

being silly. 

He /She is 

being silly. 

It is 

being silly. 

We are 

being silly. 

They are 

being silly. 

PAST CONTINUOUS (ACTIVE) 

I was 

being silly. 

You were 

beingsilly. 

He 

/She was 

being silly. 

It was 

being silly. 

We were 

being silly. 

They were 

being silly. 

http://www.learnenglish.de/grammar/verbstative.html
http://www.learnenglish.de/grammar/participlepresent.html


 
 
 
 

Am/Is/Are 

The verb to be is used to create simple yes/no questions by simply inverting the order 

of subject and the “To be” verb. 

For example:- 

I am a teacher. (Statement) 

Am I a teacher? (Question) 

Question Positive Statement 
Negative Statement (possible short 

forms) 

Singular     

Am I ...? I am ... (I'm ...) I am not ... (I'm not ...) 

Is he / she / it 

...? 

He / She / It is 

...(He's/She's/It's ...) 

He / She / It is not (He / She / It isn't... // 

He's / She's / It's not ...) 

Are you ...? You are ...(You're...) You are not (You're not ...// You aren't...) 

Am I being ...? I am being ... I am not being ... (I'm not being...) 

Is he / she / it 

being...? 

He / She / It is being ... 

(He's/She's/It's being ...) 

He / She / It is not being ... (He / She / It 

isn't being...// He/she/it's not being...) 

Are you being 

...? 

You are being ... (You're 

being ...) 

You are not being ... (You're not being ... // 

You aren't being...) 

Was I ...? I was ... I was not. .. 

Was he / she / it 

...? 
He / She / It was ... 

He / She / It was not ... (He / She / It 

wasn't) 

Were you ...? You were ... You were not ... (You weren't ...) 

Was I being ...? I was being ... I was not being (I wasn't being...) 

Was he / she / it 

being...? 
He / She / It was being ... 

He / She / It was not being ... (He / She / It 

wasn't being... ) 

Were you being 

...? 
You were being ... 

You were not being ... (You weren't being 

...) 

Will I be ...? I will be ... (I'll be ...) I will not be ... (I'll not be ...) 

Will he / she / it 

be ...? 

He / She / It will be 

...(He'll / She'll / It'll be 

...) 

He / She / It will not be (He / She / It won't 

be ... // He'll not be / She'll not be / It'll not 

be ...) 

Will you be ...? 
You will be ...(You'll be 

...) 

You will not be (You won't be ... // You'll 

not be ...) 

Plural     



 
 
 
 

Are we / you / 

they? 

We / You / They are 

(We're / You're / They're) 

We / You /They are not (We're / You're / 

They're not // We / You / They aren't) 

Are we / you / 

they being ...? 

We / You / They are 

being ... (We're / You're / 

They're) 

We / You /They are not being (We're / 

You're / They're not being // We / You / 

They aren't being) 

Were we / you / 

they ...? 
We / You / They were ... 

We / You / They were not ... (We / You / 

They weren't ...) 

Were we / you / 

they being ...? 

We / You / They were 

being ... 

We / You / They were not being ... (We / 

You / They weren't being ...) 

Will we / you / 

they be ...? 

We / You / They will be 

...(We'll / You'll They'll 

be ...) 

We / You / They will not be (We / You / 

They won't be ... // We'll / You'll They'll 

not be ...) 

Examples 

 
Am/Are Is 

Question - ? "Am I disturbing you?" "Is this your coat" 

Positive Answer - Yes "Yes you are." "Yes it is" 

Negative Answer - No "No you're not." "No it isn't" 

 
Was / Were Was 

Question - ? "Was I disturbing you?" "Was that your old house?" 

Positive Answer - Yes "Yes you were ." "Yes it was " 

Negative Answer - No "No you weren't." "No it wasn't." 

Yes/No questions are questions to which the answer is Yes or No 

Look at these statements: 

They are working hard. 

They will be working hard. 

They had worked hard. 

They have been working hard. 

They might have been working hard. 

We make Yes/No questions by putting the subject, they, after the first part of the 

verb: 

Are they working hard? 

Will they be working hard? 

Had they worked hard? 

Have they been working hard? 

Might they have been working hard? 



 
 
 
 

2. Negatives 

We make negatives by putting not after the first part of the verb: 

They are not working hard 

They will not be working hard 

They had not worked hard 

They have not been working hard 

They might not have been working hard 

In spoken English we often reduce not to n’t: 

They aren’t working hard. 

They won’t be working hard 

They hadn’t been working hard 

et3. Questions and negatives with present simple and past simple forms: 

For all verbs except be and have we use do/does and did with the base form of the 

verb to makeYes/No questions for the present simple and past simple forms: 

They work hard >>> Do they work hard? 

He works hard >>> Does he work hard? 

They worked hard >>> Did they work hard? 

For all verbs except be and have we make negatives by 

putting not after do/does and did for the present simple and past simple forms: 

They work hard >>>They do not (don’t) work hard 

He works hard >>> He does not (doesn’t) work hard 

They worked hard >>> They did not (didn’t) work hard. 

Here are the question forms and negative forms for the verb be in the present simple 

and past simple: 

I am (I‟m) Am I? I am not (I‟m not) 

He is (he‟s) Is he? He is not (He‟s not/He isn‟t) 



 
 
 
 

She is (she‟s) Is she She is not (She‟s not/She isn‟t) 

It is (it‟s) Is it It is not (It‟s not/It isn‟t) 

You are (you‟re) Are you You are not (You‟re not/You aren‟t) 

They are (they‟re) Are they They are not (They‟re not/They aren‟t) 

  

The verb have: 

We make questions and negatives with have in two ways: 

 normally we use do/does or did for questions : 

Do you have plenty of time? 

Does she have enough money? 

Did they have any useful advice? 

 and negatives: 

I don’t have much time. 

She doesn’t have any money. 

They didn’t have any advice to offer. 

  … but we can make questions by putting have, has or had in front of the subject: 

Have you plenty of time? 

Had they any useful advice? 

 … and we can make negatives by putting not or n’t after have, has or had: 

We haven’t much time. 

She hadn’t any money. 

He hasn’t a sister called Liz, has he? 



 
 
 
 

4.  Wh-questions 

Wh-questions are questions which start with a question-asking word, either a Wh- 

word (what,when, where, which, who, whose, why) or questions with the word how. 

Questions with: when, where, why: 

We form wh-questions with these words by putting the question word in front of 

a Yes/No question: 

Where are they working? 

Why have they been working hard? 

Where does he work? 

Where will you go? 

When did they arrive? 

etc. 

Questions with who, which and what (see Pronouns): 

 Sometimes who or what takes the place of the subject (see Clauses, Sentences and 

Phrases) of the clause: 

Who gave you the chocolates? >>> Barbara gave me the chocolates. 

Who is looking after the children? >>> My mother is looking after the children 

Who mended the window? >>> My brother mended the window 

Who could have done this? >>> Anybody could have done this. 

 We use what in the same way: 

What will happen? 

What caused the accident? 

What frightened the children? 

When we ask who, which and what about the object of the verb (see Clauses, 

Sentences and Phrases), we make questions in the way described 

in 1 and 3 above with who, which or what at the beginning of the clause: 

He is seeing Joe tomorrow >>> Who is he seeing tomorrow? 

I want a computer for my birthday >>> What do you want for your birthday? 

She has brought some fruit for the picnic >>> What has she brought for the 

picnic? 

They need a new car >>> What do they need? 

We sometimes use which or what with a noun: 



 
 
 
 

What subjects did you study at school? 

What newspaper do you read? 

Which newspaper do you read – the Times or the Guardian? 

Which book do you want? 

Questions with how: 

We use how for many different questions: 

How are you? 

How do you make questions in English? 

How long have you lived here? 

How often do you go to the cinema? 

How much is this dress? 

How old are you? 

How many people came to the meeting? 

 

5. Questions with verbs and prepositions: 

When we have a question with a verb and a preposition the preposition usually 

comes at the endof the clause: 

I gave the money to my brother >>>Who did you give the money to? 

She comes from Madrid >>> Where does she come from? 

They were waiting for more than an hour >>> How long were they 

waiting for? 

6. Other ways of asking questions: 

We use a phrases like these in front of a statement to ask questions: 

Do you know…? I wonder... Can you tell me …? 

 We use these phrase with if for Yes/No questions: 

This is the right house >>> Do you know if this is the right house? 

Mr. Brown lives here >>> Do you know if Mr. Brown lives here? 

Everyone will have read the book >>> I wonder if everyone will have read the 

book. 



 
 
 
 

 

… or with wh-words: 

I wonder how much this dress is. 

Can you tell me where she comes from? 

Do you know who lives here? 

 We often use do you think…? after wh-words: 

How much do you think this dress is? 

Where do you think she comes from? 

Who do you think lives here? 

7. Negatives with the to-infinitive: 

ARTICLE a/an 1. The indefinite article – a 

The indefinite article a is the same for all genders. 

 a boy 

 a girl 

 a cat 

The indefinite article has no plural form. 

 a boy → boys 

We use an if the following word starts with a spoken vowel. 

the following word starts with a 

spoken consonant 

the following word starts with a 

spoken vowel 

 a boy 

 a school 

 a girl 

 an aunt 

 an old school 

 an American girl 



 
 
 
 

the following word starts with a 

spoken consonant 

the following word starts with a 

spoken vowel 

Mind the pronunciation of the following word. 

The first sound we speak is [j], so we 

use a → a unit 

The first sound we speak is [ʌ], so we 

use an → an uncle 

2. Use of the indefinite article a/an 

2.1. before phrases of time and measurements (per week/weekly) 

 We have English 4 times a week. 

 I go on holiday twice a year. 

 Our car can do 220 kilometres an hour. 

 Tomatoes are $2 a kilo. 

2.2. before phrases of jobs 

 My father is a car mechanic. 

2.3. with a noun complement 

 He is a good boy. 

2.4. before phrases of nationality 

 Bruce Springsteen is an American. 

2.5. half/quite 

 We need half a pound of sugar. 

 This is quite a good story. 



 
 
 
 

 Table of Articles 

  

NUMBER INDEFINITE DEFINITE 

Singular a / an the 

Plural nothing the 

Non-Count nothing the 

A and AN are called indefinite articles. "Indefinite" means "not specific". 

Use A(AN) when you are talking about a thing in general, NOT a specific thing. 

Examples: 

 I need a phone. Not a specific phone, any phone 

 Mark wants a bicycle. Not a particular bicycle, a bicycle in general 

 Do you have a driver's license? In general 

Use A(AN) when talking about a thing which is new, unknown, or introduced to a 

listener for the first time. Also use A(AN) when you are asking about the existence of 

something. 

Examples: 

 I have a car. The car is being introduced for the first time. 

 Tom is a teacher. This is new information to the listener. 

 Is there a dictionary in your backpack? Asking about the existence of the 

dictionary 

Similarly, use A(AN) to introduce what type of thing we are talking about. 

Examples: 

http://www.grammarbank.com/indefinite-articles.html


 
 
 
 

 That is an excellent book. Describing the kind of book 

 Do you live in a big house? Asking about the kind of house 

 I ate a thick, juicy steak. Describing the kind of steak 

REMEMBER: You cannot use A(AN) with plural nouns because A(AN) means "one" 

or "a single". 

Examples: 

 I saw a bears in Yellowstone National Park. Not Correct 

 I saw bears in Yellowstone National Park. Correct 

  



 
 
 
 

 

 MODULE 2 

 Why do we use this and these? 

We use this (singular) and these (plural) as pronouns: 

- to talk about people or things near us: 

This is a nice cup of tea. 

Whose shoes are these? 

- to introduce people: 

This is Janet. 

These are my friends, John and Michael. 

WARNING: 

We don‟t say These are John and Michael. 

We say This is John and this is Michael. 

- to introduce ourselves to begin a conversation on the phone: 

Hello, this is David, Can I speak to Sally? 

Examples: 

 This is my car. (singular) 

 These are our children. (plural) 

We use that (singular) and those (plural) to refer to something that is there / far. 

Examples: 

 That is our house. (singular) 

 Those are my shoes. (plural) 

Why do we use that and those? 

We use that (singular) and those (plural): 

- to talk about things that are not near us: 



 
 
 
 

What‟s that? 

This is our house, and that‟s Rebecca‟s house over there. 

Those are very expensive shoes. 

- We also use that to refer back to something someone said or did: 

 - Shall we go to the cinema? 

- Yes, that‟s a good idea. 

 - I‟ve got a new job. 

- That‟s great. 

 - I‟m very tired. 

- Why is that? 

this, these, that, those with nouns 

We also use this, these, that and those with nouns to show proximity 

We use this and these for people or things near us: 

We have lived in this house for twenty years. 

Have you read all of these books? 

… and that and those for people or things that are not near us: 

Who lives in that house? 

Who are those people? 

   Have got and have 

from English Grammar Today 

Have got and have mean the same. Have got is more informal. We usehave (got) here 

to refer to both verbs: 

I’ve got a terrible pain in my back. 

I have a terrible pain in my back. (more formal) 

They haven’t got a car. 

They don’t have a car. (more formal) 

We use have (got) to talk about possession, relationships, characteristics and illnesses. 

In these contexts, it is not used in the continuous form: 

She’s got two cats and a dog. 

She has two cats and a dog. 

Not: She is having got two cats and a dog. 

Have you got a drill? 



 
 
 
 

Do you have a drill? (more formal) 

How many brothers have you got? 

How many brothers do you have? (more formal) 

She’s got a new boyfriend. 

She has a new boyfriend. (more formal) 

She’s got a delightful voice. 

She has a delightful voice. (more formal) 

It’s got 153 calories and 45g of carbohydrates. 

It has 153 calories and 45g of carbohydrates. (more formal) 

I have never had the measles. 

She’s got a headache. 

1. Affirmative sentences 

have have got 

I have a brother. 

I have got a brother. 

I've got a brother. 

You have a sister. 

You have got a sister. 

You've got a sister. 

He has a cat. 

He has got a cat. 

He's got a cat. 



 
 
 
 

have have got 

She has a dog. 

She has got a dog. 

She's got a dog. 

It has Bluetooth. 

It has got Bluetooth. 

It's got Bluetooth. 

We have books. 

We have got books. 

We've got books. 

You have a nice room. 

You have got a nice room. 

You've got a nice room. 

They have pets. 

They have got pets. 

They've got pets. 

have got be is often used in its contracted form even in written language. 



 
 
 
 

2. Negations 

have have got 

I do not have a brother. 

I have not got a brother. 

I haven't got a brother. 

I don't have a brother. I've not got a brother. 

You do not have a sister. 

You have not got a sister. 

You haven't got a sister. 

You don't have a sister. You've not got a sister. 

He does not have a cat. 

He has not got a cat. 

He hasn't got a cat. 

He doesn't have a cat. He's not got a cat. 

She does not have a dog. She has not got a dog. 



 
 
 
 

have have got 

She hasn't got a dog. 

She doesn't have a dog. She's not got a dog. 

It does not have Bluetooth. 

It has not got Bluetooth. 

It hasn't got Bluetooth. 

It doesn't have Bluetooth. It's not got Bluetooth. 

We do not have books. 

We have not got books. 

We haven't got books. 

We don't have books. We've not got books. 

You do not have a nice room. 

You have not got a nice room. 

You haven't got a nice room. 



 
 
 
 

have have got 

You don't have a nice room. You've not got a nice room. 

They do not have pets. 

They have not got pets. 

They haven't got pets. 

They don't have pets. They've not got pets. 

3. Questions 

have have got 

Do I have time? Have I got time? 

Do you have pets? Have you got pets? 

Does he have a computer? Has he got a computer? 

Does she have a mobile phone? Has she got a mobile phone? 



 
 
 
 

have have got 

Does it have mudguards? Has it got mudguards? 

Do we have ketchup? Have we got ketchup? 

Do you have a yellow car? Have you got a yellow car? 

Do they have nice teachers? Have they got nice teachers? 

There can be negations in questions too. 

have have got 

Don't you have a brother? Haven't you got a brother? 

4. Be careful 

4.1. The contracted forms 've or 's are only used with have got – not with have. 

right wrong 

I've got a new mobile phone. I've a new mobile phone. 



 
 
 
 

right wrong 

He's got a new car. He's a new car. 

4.2. Do not use an auxiliary with have got – only with have. Be careful when using 

negations. 

right wrong 

Have you got a garden? Do you have got a garden? 

Do you have a pet? Have you a pet? 

They haven't got a brother. They haven't a house. 

4.3. have cannot always be substituted with have got. You can only 

substitute have with have got when you talk about possession and relationships. 

have got have 

I've got a brother. I have a brother. 

wrong: I had got an accident. I had an accident. 



 
 
 
 

have got have 

wrong: We had got lunch. We had lunch. 

► In American English have is dropped in informal speech like in the following 

example. 

We've got a problem. → We got a problem. 

 

POSSESSIVE‟S 

The possessive case is used to show ownership. (Lynne's website.) 

The good news is that the genitive case is used less and less in English today. Hooray! 

You may still hear someone say something like "The mother of the bride," but it 

could equally be; "The bride's mother." 

However, the possessive pattern ('s) is generally used when indicate a relation of 

ownership or association with a person, rather than a thing. 

For example:- 

 Lynne's web site kept growing larger and larger. 

There are, as ever, exceptions to this rule. When a group of people is involved or 

animals. 

For example:- 

 The members' forum.  

 The dogs' tails. 



 
 
 
 

Singular and irregular plural nouns that don't end in 's' take -'s. 

For example:- 

 Lynne's web site. 

 The people's court. 

Plural nouns that end in " s " take an apostrophe at the end ( ' ). 

For example:- 

 The girls' dresses. 

People's names that end in "s" you can write (') or ('s). 

For example:- 

 Charles' job was on the line. 

or 

 Charles's job was on the line. 

Try to avoid sounding like hissing Sid though. When an added - s would lead to three 

closely bunched s or z sounds just use an apostrophe at the end. 

 The map of Ulysses' journey. 

If you have to show joint ownership, give the possessive form to the final name only. 

 Abbott and Costello's famous baseball sketch. 

Pronouns and determiners are inflected to show the possessive case. 

PERSONAL PRONOUN/DETERMINER 

Possessive 

Lynne's Lynne's 

http://www.fun-with-english.co.uk/2009/08/whos-on-first-bud-abbott-and-lou.html
http://www.learnenglish.de/grammar/pronountext.html
http://www.learnenglish.de/grammar/determinertext.html
http://www.learnenglish.de/grammar/casepossgen.html#Possessive2
http://www.learnenglish.de/grammar/casepossgen.html#Possessive/Genitive


 
 
 
 

My Mine 

Your Yours 

His His 

Her Hers 

Its Its 

Our Ours 

Their Theirs 

Whose Whose 

For example:- 

 This is Lynne's web site. It's my website!. It's mine! 

 It's not Zozanga's web site. It's not his website. It's not his. 

 Have you seen her book? It's her book. It's hers. 

Genitive Case 

You should still use the genitive case when talking about things that belong to other 

things. 

For example:- 

 The door of the car. 

 The content of the website. 

 The top of the page. 

 

 

 

 

 MODULE 3 

 

Simple Present 1: Positive and Negative 

I work; I don‟t work 



 
 
 
 

 

FORM 

Look at these sentences. 

I live in Barcelona. 

My brother works for Coca Cola. 

He doesn’t drink coffee. 

These verbs are in the simple present. 

POSITIVE 

I / You / We / They eat 

He / She / It  eats 

1.To make the third person singular (the he, she and it form), add –s to most verbs. 

He plays the guitar. 

She likes football. 

This computer makes a lot of noise. 

2.We normally add –es to verbs that end in –ss, -o, -sh, -ch or –x. 

She misses the bus every day! 

He goes to the movies three times a week. 

Jenny washes her hair with French shampoo. 

My dog watches me when I eat breakfast. 

Tony fixes our washing machine. 

NEGATIVE 

When we make negative sentences in simple present, we put do not or does not before 

the base verb. We do not add –s to the base verb. 



 
 
 
 

I / You / We / They do not (don‟t)  eat 

He / She / It  does not (doesn‟t) eat 

Notes: 

1.We normally use the short form of the negative in conversation. 

I don’t understand. 

He doesn’t speak Italian. 

2.We always use an infinitive after do, do not (don’t) and does not (doesn’t). 

Simple Present 2: Questions 

Do you like French food? 

 

FORM 

1. Look at these sentences. 

Do I need a visa for America? 

Do you like French food? 

Does it rain a lot in Scotland? 

Do they have any children? 

These are question forms of the simple present. 

2. do + subject + base verb or 

does + subject + base verb 

We always use the base verb after do and does. 

Does this bus go to the station? Not Does this bus goes to the station? 

Do I / you / we / they want  an ice cream? 

Does he / she / it   want  an ice cream? 



 
 
 
 

Short Answers with Do and Does 

In questions that use do/does it is possible to give short answers, to direct questions as 

follows: 

Sample Questions 
Short Answer 

(Affirmative) 

Short Answer 

(Negative) 

Do I need a ticket? Yes, you do. No, you don't. 

Do you need a dictionary? Yes, I do. No, I don't. 

Do you both speak English? Yes, we do. No, we don't. 

Do they need help? Yes, they do. No, they don't. 

Does he like chocolate? Yes, he does. No, he doesn't. 

Does she want to come? Yes, she does. No, she doesn't. 

Does it have four legs? Yes, it does. No, it doesn't. 

be 

Use: 

 am with the personal pronoun II 

 is with the personal pronouns he, she or it (or with the singular form of nouns) 

 are with the personal pronouns we, you or they (or with the plural form of nouns) 

example: I am hungry. 

  affirmative negative question 

I I am. I am not. Am I? 

he/she/it He is. He is not. Is he? 

you/we/they You are. You are not. Are you? 

have 



 
 
 
 

Use: 

 have with the personal pronouns I, you, we und they (or with the plural form of 

nouns) 

 has with the personal pronouns he, she, it (or with the singular form of nouns) 

example: I have a dog. / I have got a dog. 

'have got' is mainly used in British English. You can also use 'have' on its own 

(especially in American English). In this case, however, you must form negative 

sentences and questions with the auxiliary verb 'do' (see 'All other verbs'). 

  positiv negativ question 

I/you/we/they I have got. / I 

have. 

I have not got. / I do not 

have. 

Have I got? / Do I 

have? 

he/she/it He has got. / He 

has. 

He has not got. / He does 

not have. 

Has he got? / Does 

he have? 

 

 MODULE 4 

Present simple: she and he  

In the present simple 3rd person singular (he, she, it), add s, es, or ies to the base form 

of the verb. 

 To regular verbs just add an s – Ex: travel >travels, give > gives, play >plays 

 To verbs that end in s, ss, sh, ch, x, and o, add an es – Ex: wash > washes, mix > 

mixes, go >goes 

 To verbs end in y after a consonant (any letter that isn‟t a vowel), change the y to i 

and add es. Ex: study > studies, fly > flies 

Sometimes the present simple tense doesn‟t seem very simple. Here we will sort it all 

out for you! 

We use the present simple tense to express the following ideas: 



 
 
 
 

1. To state facts or general truths 

2. To express habits or customs 

3. To relate future plans (often regarding programs and timetables) 

4. To tell jokes and stories or to report sporting events in real time. 

Examples of the Present Simple 

1. The sun sets in the west. 

2. We produce lasers for cosmetic surgery. 

3. They move into their new home next week. 

4. So, I go to Mr. D and say “I deserve a better mark in this class”. 

5. Jones stops in mid-court and passes the ball to Schuster. 

Forming the Present Simple 

Subject verb rest of sentence 

I / You / We / They sleep late on Saturdays 

He / She / It goes to the beach every weekend 

Time Expressions in the Present Simple 

The most common time expressions in the present simple are: usually, always, never, 

on Wednesdays, every Wednesday, twice a week, once a month, in general, every 

other day. 

Time expressions made up of one word are placed between the subject and the verb in 

positive sentences and questions and between the auxiliary verb and main verb in 

negative sentences. 

1. I always study hard for exams. 

2. Do you usually speak to him like that? 



 
 
 
 

Time expressions made up of two or more words are placed either at the beginning or 

the end of a sentence and usually at the end of questions. 

1. Ben goes to football practice every Tuesday. 

2. In general, I believe that all people can live in peace. 

3. you go to the supermarket every week? 

Negative Sentences in the Present Simple Tense 

Spelling Tip 

When shortening the 3rd person (he, she, it) negative, just remove the o in not and add 

an apostrophe („) does not > doesn’t 

When creating negative sentences, we usually use the auxiliary verbs don‟t and 

doesn‟t + the base form of the verb. 

Note: Save the long forms (do not, and does not) for when you want to create 

emphasis. When speaking, put the stress on „not‟. 

Subject auxillery verb verb in base form rest of sentence 

I / You / We / They don‟t (do not) eat late at night 

He / She / It doesn‟t (does not) watch TV every day 

1. I don’t like the food they serve at that restaurant. 

2. Jim doesn’t work on Fridays. 

3. My friends don’t usually leave so early. 

4. I do not want to go with you! 

Yes/No Questions in the Present Simple 

Punctuation Tip 



 
 
 
 

Always begin a sentence, question and wh-question with a capital letter: 

He always does good work. 

Do you like me? 

What did they bring you? 

To create a question that will be answered with a yes or no, start the question with Do 

orDoes, then add a subject (the person or thing that does the action) followed by the 

base form of the verb and only then add the rest of the sentence. 

Auxiliary 

Verb 
subject 

verb in base 

form 
rest of sentence 

Do 
I / you / we / 

they 
drive 

to the city on 

Mondays 

Does he / she / it break down often 

1. Do you surf the Internet every day? 

2. Does your boss give you positive feedback? 

3. Does Jonathan always turn off the lights? 

4. Don‟t you ever clean your room? 

Note: In the Present Simple tense: 

1. You may add a one-word time expression, such as „always‟, „usually‟, or „often‟ 

between the subject and the verb. 

2. You may use a negative question with a time expression such as „ever‟. 

Wh-Questions in the Present Simple 

Wh- questions are questions that require more information in their answers. Typical 

wh- words are what, where, when, why, who, how, how many, how much. 



 
 
 
 

To create a wh-question, start with the wh-word, then add do or does, then the subject 

(a person or thing that does the action), followed by the base form of the verb and 

only then add the rest of the sentence. 

Wh-

Word 

Auxiliary 

Verb 
Subject 

Verb in Base 

Form 

Rest of 

Sentence 

What do 
I / you / we / 

they 
want 

 

Why does he / she / it shout at you 

1. When do you want to meet me? 

2. Why does Beth always complain so much? 

3. How much does the ticket cost? 

4. Why don’t you ever go on vacation? 

Tag Questions in the Present Simple 

Tag questions are those short questions that are tagged onto the end of a sentence. 

They are used just to make sure the person you‟re talking to understood what you 

meant or to emphasize what you said. 

They‟re formed either by using a regular sentence in the present simple and adding 

don‟t or doesn‟t and a pronoun (I, you, we, they, he, she, it) and a question mark. 

1. John likes me, doesn’t he? 

2. All those girls speak French, don’t they? 

You may also add a positive tag when you‟re using a negative sentence. 

1. Keisha doesn‟t speak Spanish, does she 

2. Those boys don‟t play sports, do they? 



 
 
 
 

As a rule: When the sentence is positive, the tag is negative. 

When the sentence is negative, the tag is positive. 

Exercises for the Present Simple 

Examples – Present Simple 

Positive 

1. The sun sets in the west. 

2. We produce lasers for cosmetic surgery. 

3. They move into their new home next week. 

4. So, I go to Mr. D and say “I deserve a better mark in this class”. 

5. Jones stops in mid-court and passes the ball to Schuster. 

6. I always study hard for exams. 

7. Do you usually speak to him like that? 

8. Ben goes to football practice every Tuesday. 

9. In general, I believe that all people can live in peace. 

10. Do you go to the supermarket every week? 

Negative 

1. I don‟t like the food they serve at that restaurant. 

2. Jim doesn‟t work on Fridays. 

3. My friends don‟t usually leave so early. 

4. I do not want to go with you! 

Yes/No Questions 

1. Do you surf the Internet every day? 

2. Does your boss give you positive feedback? 

3. Does Jonathan always turn off the lights? 

4. Don‟t you ever clean your room? 

Wh Questions 

1. When do you want to meet me? 



 
 
 
 

2. Why does Beth always complain so much? 

3. How much does the ticket cost? 

4. Why don‟t you ever go on vacation? 

Tag Questions 

1. John likes me, doesn‟t he? 

2. All those girls speak French, don‟t they? 

3. Keisha doesn‟t speak Spanish, does she? 

4. Those boys don‟t play sports, do they? 

Adverbs of Frequency 

 

We use some adverbs to describe how frequently we do an activity. 

These are called adverbs of frequency and include: 

Frequency Adverb of Frequency Example Sentence 

100% always I always go to bed before 11pm. 

90% usually I usually have cereal for breakfast. 

80% normally / generally I normally go to the gym. 

70% often* / frequently I often surf the internet. 

50% sometimes I sometimes forget my wife's birthday. 

30% occasionally I occasionally eat junk food. 

10% seldom I seldom read the newspaper. 

5% hardly ever / rarely I hardly ever drink alcohol. 

0% never I never swim in the sea. 

* Some people pronounce the 'T' in often but many others do not. 

 

 

The Position of the Adverb in a Sentence 

An adverb of frequency goes before a main verb (except with To Be). 



 
 
 
 

Subject + adverb + main verb 

I always remember to do my homework. 

He normally gets good marks in exams. 

 

 

An adverb of frequency goes after the verb To Be. 

Subject + to be + adverb 

They are never pleased to see me. 

She isn't usually bad tempered. 

 

 

When we use an auxiliary verb (have, will, must, might, could, would, can, etc.), the 

adverb is placed between the auxiliary and the main verb. This is also true for to be. 

Subject + auxiliary + adverb + main verb 

She can sometimes beat me in a race. 

I would hardly ever be unkind to someone. 

They might never see each other again. 

They could occasionally be heard laughing. 

 

 

We can also use the following adverbs at the start of a sentence: 

Usually, normally, often, frequently, sometimes, occasionally 

 Occasionally, I like to eat Thai food. 

BUT we cannot use the following at the beginning of a sentence: 

Always, seldom, rarely, hardly, ever, never. 

 

 

http://www.grammar.cl/Present/To_Be.htm
http://www.grammar.cl/Basic/Can_Cannot.htm


 
 
 
 

We use hardly ever and never with positive, not negative verbs: 

 She hardly ever comes to my parties. 

 They never say 'thank you'. 

We use ever in questions and negative statements: 

 Have you ever been to New Zealand? 

 I haven't ever been to Switzerland. (The same as 'I have never been 

Switzerland'). 

Subject Auxiliary Adverb of frequency Verb Rest 

I   always get up at 6.45. 

Peter can usually play football on Sundays. 

Mandy has sometimes got lots of homework. 

or after a form of to be (am, are, is) - (was, were). 

Subject Auxiliary Adverb of frequency Rest 

Susan is never late. 

The adverbs often, usually, sometimes and occasionally can go at the beginning of a 

sentence. 

 Sometimes I go swimming. 



 
 
 
 

 Often we surf the internet. 

Somtimes these adverbs can go at the end of a sentence. 

 We read books occasionally. 

 MODULE 5 

 

 Can is a modal verb. 

Can is used to express ability or to say that something is possible. 

Can is the same for all subjects. We don't add an 'S' in the third person (like other 

verbs) 

The verb that comes after Can is in the infinitive without to: 

 I can speak Spanish. (= it is possible for me to speak Spanish = I have the 

ability to speak Spanish) 

 He can swim well. 

 We can see our neighbour in the garden. 

 They can play the guitar. 

For more uses of Can see: Modal Verbs: Can - Could 

 

 

Negative 

To form the negative we add "not" after can to form one word: cannot. 

We can also contract the negative to form can't. (can't = cannot) 

 I cannot play the piano. We can't go to the cinema tonight. 

 She cannot speak French very well. He can't drive a car. 

 

 

Questions 

To from the question we change the position of the subject and the auxiliary verb. 



 
 
 
 

The main verb is still in the infinitive without to. 

 Where can I buy an ice-cream? 

 Can I go to the party, please? 

 Can you speak Japanese? 

 What can we do on Saturday? 

Remember that you can use short answers: 

 Can I sit here please? Yes, you can. 

 Can you speak Chinese? No, I can't. 

 

 

Impersonal Can 

Sometimes You can and Can you…? are impersonal and refer to people in general. 

 You can see many stars at night from here. (= people in general can see many 

stars) 

It doesn't necessarily refer to you but people in general. 

 You can't run naked in the middle of the street. 

 Articles - The, A / An, Zero Article 

   

 1 Introduction 

   

 1.1 What are Articles? 

 Articles are words which come before nouns: 

 the is called the definite article 

 a / an is called the indefinite article 

 - means we use no article before a noun; 

 this is called the zero article 



 
 
 
 

   

 1.2 Overview of the Unit 

 This unit divides into the following sections: 

 2.1 Basic Rules 

 2.2 Basic Rules – Exercises 

 2.3 Advanced Rules / Exceptions 

 2.4 Advanced Rules – Exercises 

 2.5 Final Practice Exercise 

 2 Using Articles 

   

 2.1 Basic Rules 

   Study the following „basic' rules for using articles. Mastery of these rules 

should ensure accuracy in 9 out of 10 cases. A series of exercises follows to 

practise the basic rules. There is also a separate section to explain more 

„advanced' rules. 

   

Rule Explanation Type of Noun 

Rule 1: The 

„You Know 

Which One(s)' 

The noun is identified because: 

- it has been mentioned before, or 

- it is identified by a relative clause or a 

prepositional phrase 

- Singular & 

Plural Common 

Nouns 

- Uncountable 

Nouns 

Rule 2: The 

„There Is Only 

One' 

The noun is identified because there is 

only one 

-Singular & 

Plural Common 

Nouns 



 
 
 
 

-Uncountable 

Nouns 

Rule 3: The 

„It Is Clear From 

the Context 

Which One(s)' 

The noun is identified because: 

- there is only one in this context 

- it is clear from the context which one / 

ones I mean 

- Singular & 

Plural Common 

Nouns 

- Uncountable 

Nouns 

Rule 4: A / An 

„You Don't 

Already Know 

Which One' 

The listener / reader doesn't already 

know which one because: 

- it has not been mentioned before, or 

- it is not identified by a relative clause or 

a prepositional phrase, or 

- it is not clear from the context which 

one 

The speaker / reader may want 

to emphasise that you do 

not already know which one - i.e. this 

is newinformation 

- Only with 

Singular 

Countable 

Nouns 

  

   

Rule Explanation Type of Noun 

Rule 5: A / An 

„Just One Of A 

Larger Group' 

To show that we refer to one member of 

a larger group; often used in descriptions 

- Only with 

Singular 

Countable 

Nouns 



 
 
 
 

Rule 6: Zero 

Article 

„You Don't 

Already Know 

Which' 

The listener / reader doesn't already 

know whichbecause: 

- it has not been mentioned before, or 

- it is not identified by a relative clause or 

a prepositional phrase 

- Plural 

Countable 

Nouns 

- Uncountable 

Nouns 

Rule 7: Zero 

Article 

„Generalisations'/ 

„Unspecified 

amount'/ Any 

amount 

To show that we refer to all members of 

this group or class, or to an unspecified 

amount of something 

- Plural 

Countable 

Nouns 

- Uncountable 

Nouns 

Rule 8: Zero 

Article 

„With Proper 

Nouns' 

No article is used with the names of 

people, cities, etc 

- Proper Nouns 

   

   

 2.2 Basic Rules - Exercises 

 The following section contains six practice exercises. 

 The exercises test your understanding of the following choices : 

 the or a / an 

 a / an or zero article 

 the or zero artic 
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We use there is and there are to say that something exists. 



 
 
 
 

 

 

Positive Sentences 

We use there is for singular and there are for plural. 

 There is one table in the classroom. 

 There are three chairs in the classroom. 

 There is a spider in the bath. 

 There are many people at the bus stop. 

We also use There is with uncountable nouns: 

 There is milk in the fridge. 

 There is some sugar on the table. 

 There is ice cream on your shirt. 

 

 

Contractions 

The contraction of there is is there's. 

 There's a good song on the radio. 

 There's only one chocolate left in the box. 

You cannot contract there are. 

 There are nine cats on the roof. 

 There are only five weeks until my birthday. 

 

 

Negative Form 

The negative is formed by putting not after is or are: 

 There is not a horse in the field. 

 There are not eight children in the school. 

 There is not a tree in the garden. 

 There are not two elephants in the zoo. 

http://www.grammar.cl/Notes/Countable_Uncountable_Nouns.htm


 
 
 
 

We almost always use contractions when speaking. 

The Negative contractions are: 

 There's not = There isn't 

 There are not = There aren't 

 

 

There aren't with ANY 

When we want to indicate that a zero quantity of something exists we use there 

aren't any. 

 There aren't any people at the party. 

 There aren't any trees in my street. 

We also use this structure with uncountable nouns: 

 There isn't any water in the swimming pool. 

 There isn't any sugar in my coffee. 

 

 

Questions 

To form a question we place is / are in front of there. 

Again we use any with plural questions or those which use uncountable nouns. 

We also use there is / are in short answers. 

 Is there a dog in the supermarket? - No, there isn't. 

 Are there any dogs in the park? - Yes, there are. 

 Is there a security guard in the shop? - Yes, there is. 

 Are there any polar bears in Antarctica? - No, there aren't. 

 Is there any ice-cream in the freezer? - Yes, there is. 

 

 

How Many with Are There 



 
 
 
 

If we want to find out the number of objects that exist we use How many in the 

following form: 

How many + plural noun + are there (+ complement). 

 How many dogs are there in the park? 

 How many students are there in your class? 

 How many countries are there in South America? 

 How many Star Wars films are there? 

Some - Any - A - An 

English Grammar Rules 



 
 
 
 

 

 

A and AN 

We use A/AN (articles) with singular countable nouns. 

 My brother has a dog and my sister has a cat. 

 There is an accident on the corner. 

A is used when the next word starts with a consonant sound. 



 
 
 
 

 A book 

 A guitar 

 A friend 

 A university (The start of the word university sounds like YOU, a consonant 

sound). 

AN is used when the next word starts with a vowel sound. 

 An apple 

 An ice-cream 

 An orange 

 An hour (the letter H in this word is silent so it sounds like it starts with a 

vowel). 

Learn more about Definite and Indefinite Articles. 

 

 

Some and Any 

We use SOME and ANY with plural nouns and uncountable nouns. 

Some is generally used in positive sentences. 

Any is generally used in negative sentences. 

 I have some information for you about flights to Paris. 

(Positive - Uncountable) 

 I don't have any information for you about flights to Paris. 

(Negative - Uncountable) 

 We met some friends for drinks after work yesterday. 

(Positive - Plural Countable) 

 I didn't see any friends there on Thursday. 

(Negative - Plural Countable) 

 I think he will have some time to speak to you today. 

(Positive - Uncountable) 

 I don't think he will have any time to speak to you today. 

(Negative - Uncountable) 

http://www.grammar.cl/Notes/Articles.htm


 
 
 
 

 

 

You can also use SOME and ANY in a sentence without a noun if the meaning of the 

sentence is clear. 

 I didn't eat any salad but Peter ate some. (salad) 

 Sean took lots of photos of the mountains but Emma didn't take any. (photos) 

 

 

Questions with Some and Any 

Generally, we use ANY in questions. 

 Do you know any famous people? 

 Do you have any children? 

But, SOME is used in the following circumstances: 

1. When we are offering something. 

 Would you like some coffee? 

 Do you want some sugar for your coffee? 

2. When we are asking for something. 

 Could I have some salt, please? 

 Can I have some fries with that? 

3. When we are suggesting something. 

 Why don't we watch some movies on TV tonight? 

 Why don't you give her some advice? 

 

 

You can also use SOME and ANY in a sentence without a noun if the meaning of the 

sentence is clear. 

I didn't eat any salad but Peter ate some. (salad) 

Sean took lots of photos of the mountains but Emma didn't take any. (photos) 



 
 
 
 

How much? - How many? 

English Grammar 

 

When we want to know the quantity or amount of something, we ask questions 

starting with How much and How many. 

HOW MUCH ...? - (Quantity) 

How much is used with uncountable nouns. 

HOW MUCH + UNCOUNTABLE NOUN 

 How much time do we have to finish the test? 

 How much money did you spend? 

 How much sugar would you like in your coffee? 

 How much paper will I need? 

 How much milk is in the fridge? 

 How much traffic was there on the way to work? 

If the verb To Be is used with an uncountable noun, it is in singular form (= IS or 

WAS etc.) 

HOW MUCH ...? - (Price) 

How much can also be used when we want to know the PRICE of something. 

In this case, we can use How much with countable nouns (both singular and plural 

nouns). 

 How much is that painting? 

 How much are those shoes? 

 How much did your jacket cost? 

 How much is the dress on display in the window? 

 How much will it cost me? 

 How much does it cost ? 

  

HOW MANY ...? - (Quantity) 

How many is used when we want to know the QUANTITY of something. 

It is only used with plural countable nouns. 



 
 
 
 

HOW MANY + PLURAL NOUN 

 How many days are there in January? 

 How many people work in your company? 

 How many cousins do you have? 

 How many books did you buy? 

 How many countries are there in the world? 

 How many students are in the class right now? 

 How many chairs are there in this room? 

 How many pieces of chocolate would you like? 

  

Omitting the noun 

Often the noun is omitted in the question when it is obvious what we are talking 

about. 

A: I would like to buy some cheese. B: How much (cheese) would you like? 

The noun cheese is not necessary after how much since we already know we are 

talking about cheese. In fact, it is normally omitted to avoid sounding repetitive. 

More examples: 

 A: I need some coins. - B: How many do you need? 

 A: I need some sugar. - B: How much do you need? 

Summary Chart 
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The past tense of To Be in English has two forms: WAS and WERE 

To Be - Affirmative 

Subject To Be Examples 

I was I was tired this morning. 

You were You were very good. 

He was He was the best in his class. 

She was She was late for work. 

It was It was a sunny day. 

We were We were at home. 

You were You were on holiday. 

They were They were happy with their test results. 

 

 

To Be - Negative Sentences 

The negative of To Be can be made by adding not after the verb (was or were). 

Subject To Be Examples 

I was not I was not tired this morning. 

You were not You were not crazy. 

He was not He was not married. 

She was not She was not famous. 

It was not It was not hot yesterday. 

We were not We were not invited. 

You were not You were not at the party. 

They were not They were not friends. 

 

 



 
 
 
 

To Be - Negative Contractions 

The can make negative contractions of the verb To Be in the Past tense by joining 

the verb (was or were) and n't(e.g. were not = weren't). We don't make a contraction 

of the subject and the verb (e.g. I was). 

I was not tired this morning. OR I wasn't tired this morning. 

You were not crazy. OR You weren't crazy. 

He was not married. OR He wasn't married. 

She was not famous. OR She wasn't famous. 

It was not hot yesterday. OR It wasn't hot yesterday. 

We were not invited. OR We weren't invited. 

You were not at the party. OR You weren't at the party. 

They were not friends. OR They weren't friends. 

 

 

To Be - Questions 

To create questions with To Be, you put the Verb before the Subject. 

Affirmative You were happy. 

  Subject Verb   

  

Question Were you happy? 

  Verb Subject   

 

Affirmative Question 

I was late Was I late? 

You were sick. Were you sick? 

He was surprised. Was he surprised? 

She was from Italy. Was she from Italy? 

It was a big house. Was it a big house? 



 
 
 
 

We were ready. Were we ready? 

You were early. Were you early? 

They were busy. Were they busy? 

 

 

Before the verb you can also have a WH- Question word (Why, Who, What, Where 

etc.) 

Were you happy? Yes, I was. 

Why were you happy? Because I was promoted at work. 

 

 

To Be - Short Answers 

In spoken English, we usually give short answers in response to questions. 

Was he from Japan? - Yes, he was (from Japan). The last part (from Japan) is not 

necessary. We use shorts answers to avoid repetition, when the meaning is clear. 

Question Short Answers** Short Answers 

Was I late? Yes, you were. No, you weren't. 

Were you sick? Yes, I was. No, I wasn't. 

Was he surprised? Yes, he was. No, he wasn't. 

Was she from Italy? Yes, she was. No, she wasn't. 

Was it a big house? Yes, it was. No, it wasn't. 

Were we ready? Yes, we were. No, we weren't. 

Were you early? Yes, we were. No, we weren't. 

Were they busy? Yes, they were. No, they weren't. 

** With To Be, We don't use contractions in affirmative short answers. 



 
 
 
 

 

Part One 

The following is a list of Irregular Verbs in English: 

Verb Past Simple Past Participle 

arise arose arisen 

babysit babysat babysat 



 
 
 
 

be was / were been 

beat beat beaten 

become became become 

bend bent bent 

begin began begun 

bet bet bet 

bind bound bound 

bite bit bitten 

bleed bled bled 

blow blew blown 

break broke broken 

breed bred bred 

bring brought brought 

broadcast broadcast broadcast 

build built built 

buy bought bought 

catch caught caught 

choose chose chosen 

come came come 

cost cost cost 

cut cut cut 

deal dealt dealt 

dig dug dug 

do did done 

draw drew drawn 

drink drank drunk 

drive drove driven 

eat ate eaten 

fall fell fallen 

feed fed fed 

feel felt felt 



 
 
 
 

fight fought fought 

find found found 

fly flew flown 

forbid forbade forbidden 

forget forgot forgotten 

forgive forgave forgiven 

freeze froze frozen 

get got gotten 

give gave given 

go went gone 

grow grew grown 

hang* hung hung 

have had had 

hear heard heard 

hide hid hidden 

hit hit hit 

hold held held 

hurt hurt hurt 

keep kept kept 

know knew known 

lay laid laid 

lead led led 

leave left left 

lend lent lent 

let let let 

lie ** lay lain 

light lit lit 

lose lost lost 

make made made 

mean meant meant 

meet met met 



 
 
 
 

pay paid paid 

put put put 

quit quit quit 

read *** read read 

ride rode ridden 

ring rang rung 

rise rose risen 

run ran run 

say said said 

see saw seen 

sell sold sold 

send sent sent 

set set set 

shake shook shaken 

shine shone shone 

shoot shot shot 

show showed shown 

shut shut shut 

sing sang sung 

sink sank sunk 

sit sat sat 

sleep slept slept 

slide slid slid 

speak spoke spoken 

spend spent spent 

spin spun spun 

spread spread spread 

stand stood stood 

steal stole stolen 

stick stuck stuck 

sting stung stung 



 
 
 
 

strike struck struck 

swear swore sworn 

sweep swept swept 

swim swam swum 

swing swung swung 

take took taken 

teach taught taught 

tear tore torn 

tell told told 

think thought thought 

throw threw thrown 

understand understood understood 

wake woke woken 

wear wore worn 

win won won 

withdraw withdrew withdrawn 

write wrote written 

* HANG - Hang has two different meanings. The first is "to attach (or hang) 

something in a high position" (e.g. on the wall or on a hook). In this case we use the 

above verbs Hang-Hung-Hung. 

BUT when Hang means "to kill someone by putting a rope around someone's neck 

and leaving them in a high position without any support", we use different verbs: 

Hang-Hanged-hanged. This verb is typical of public s 

** LIE - Lie has two meanings. When it means "to put your body in a horizontal 

position" (normally on a bed) it uses the Lie-Lay-Lain verbs. 

BUT it is regular Lie-Lied-Lied when it has the other meaning of "not to say the 

truth". 

*** READ - Even though they are written the same, the pronunciation is different in 

the Past Tense and Past Participle form. 

 

 



 
 
 
 

Part Two 

The following verbs can be regular or irregular: 

Verb Past Simple Past Participle 

burn burned OR burnt burned OR burnt 

dream dreamed OR dreamt dreamed OR dreamt 

learn learned OR learnt learned OR learnt 

smell smelled OR smelt smelled OR smelt 

The second form (burnt, dreamt etc.) is more common in British English. 

 

 

Part Three 

Verbs that have the same form in Present, Past and Past Participle form: 

Verb Past Simple Past Participle 

bet bet bet 

broadcast broadcast broadcast 

cut cut cut 

hit hit hit 

hurt hurt hurt 

let let let 

put put put 

quit quit quit 

read read read 

set set set 

shut shut shut 

spread spread spread 

 

 



 
 
 
 

 MODULE 8 

 

1. Forming a negative 

Negatives in the simple past are formed by adding didn't (informal) or did not (formal) 

before the simple form of the verb. The verb BE is an exception to this; in the case of BE, 

we just add n't (informal) or not(formal) after "was" or "were": 

Simple past statement Informal negative Formal negative 

I had a car. I didn't have a car. I did not have a car. 

You ate my toast. You didn't eat my toast. You did not eat my toast. 

He was here yesterday. He wasn't here yesterday. He was not here yesterday. 

They were in the park. They weren't in the park. They were not in the park. 

2. Forming a yes/no question 

Yes/no questions are also created using the auxiliary did. This time, the auxiliary is 

placed before the subject. The verb BE is an exception; in this case, we move BE before 

the subject. Here are the rules: 

Simple past statement Yes/no question 

He brought his friend. Did he bring his friend? 

They had a party. Did they have a party? 

You were here. Were you here? 

She was sick. Was she sick? 



 
 
 
 

3. Forming a WH- question 

WH- questions (using words such as "what", "when", and "where") are also created by 

putting the auxiliary did before the subject (or moving BE, as explained above). Then, you 

add the WH- word at the beginning. Here are some examples: 

Statement Yes/no question WH- question 

The building fell 

down. 

Did the building fall 

down? 

Why did the building fall 

down? 

They lived in 

Vancouver. 

Did they live in 

Vancouver? 
Where did they live? 

The store was closed. Was the store closed? Why was the store closed? 

They were wolves. Were they wolves? What were they? 
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 MODULE 11 

 

 

English: can 

and can't 

Grammar 

Rules 
 

 

  

 

Can and can't - rules and exercises - Auxiliary verbs. Learning English 

  

Auxiliary verb can (positive) and can't (negative) 
  

Use can, when you ask someone to do things. Use 'can' to talk about 
'possibility'.Allways use can with another verb. 
  

I can = I know to do something. / I know that something is possible for me. 
  

I can write a letter. 
  

Form the negative 
  

Add "not" after can to form "cannot". can + not = cannot 

When we are speaking, use 'can't'! 
  

You can contract the negative: can + not = can't (normal use) 
  

Present Simple Present Simple negative 

I can write a letter. 

You can write a letter. 

He / She / It can write  a letter. 

We can write a letter. 

You can write a letter. 

They can write a letter. 

I can't write a letter. 
You can't write a letter. 
He / She / It can't write  a letter. 

We can't write a letter. 

You can't write a letter. 

They can't write a letter. 

  

Questions and short answers with can 
  

Questions  Short form 
 positive 

Short form 
negative 

  

Can I write a letter? 

Can you write a letter? 

Can he / she / it  write  a letter? 

Can we write a letter? 

Can you write a letter? 

Can they write a letter? 

  
Yes, you can. 
Yes, I can. 
Yes, her can. 
Yes, you can. 
Yes we can. 

  

No, you can't. 

No, can't. 

No, can't. 

No, you can't. 

No, we can't. 

No, they can't. 

http://first-english.org/english_learning/grammar_help/verbs_help.htm


 
 
 
 

Yes they can. 

  

Present Simple negative Present Simple negative 

I can write a letter. I cannot  write a letter. 
  

 

Can is a modal verb. 

Can is used to express ability or to say that something is possible. 

Can is the same for all subjects. We don't add an 'S' in the third person (like other verbs) 

The verb that comes after Can is in the infinitive without to: 

 I can speak Spanish. (= it is possible for me to speak Spanish = I have the ability to speak 

Spanish) 

 He can swim well. 

 We can see our neighbour in the garden. 

 They can play the guitar. 

For more uses of Can see: Modal Verbs: Can - Could 

 

 

Negative 

To form the negative we add "not" after can to form one word: cannot. 

We can also contract the negative to form can't. (can't = cannot) 

 I cannot play the piano. We can't go to the cinema tonight. 

 She cannot speak French very well. He can't drive a car. 

 

 

Questions 

To from the question we change the position of the subject and the auxiliary verb. 

The main verb is still in the infinitive without to. 

 Where can I buy an ice-cream? 

 Can I go to the party, please? 



 
 
 
 

 Can you speak Japanese? 

 What can we do on Saturday? 

Remember that you can use short answers: 

 Can I sit here please? Yes, you can. 

 Can you speak Chinese? No, I can't. 

 

 

Impersonal Can 

Sometimes You can and Can you…? are impersonal and refer to people in general. 

 You can see many stars at night from here. (= people in general can see many stars) 

It doesn't necessarily refer to you but people in general. 

 You can't run naked in the middle of the street. 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

The most common question words in English are the following: 

 

 

WHO 

WHO is only used when referring to people. (= I want to know the person) 

 Who is the best football player in the world? 

 Who are your best friends? 

 Who is that strange guy over there? 

WHERE 

WHERE is used when referring to a place or location. (= I want to know the place) 

 Where is the library? 

 Where do you live? 

 Where are my shoes? 

WHEN 

WHEN is used to refer to a time or an occasion. (= I want to know the time) 

 When do the shops open? 

 When is his birthday? 

 When are we going to finish? 

WHY 

WHY is used to obtain an explanation or a reason. (= I want to know the reason) 

 Why do we need a nanny? 

 Why are they always late? 

 Why does he complain all the time? 

Normally the response begins with "Because..." 

WHAT 

WHAT is used to refer to specific information. (= I want to know the thing) 

 What is your name? 

 What is her favouritecolour? 



 
 
 
 

 What is the time? 

WHICH 

WHICH is used when a choice needs to be made. (= I want to know the thing between alternatives) 

 Which drink did you order – the rum or the beer? 

 Which day do you prefer for a meeting – today or tomorrow? 

 Which is better - this one or that one? 

HOW 

HOW is used to describe the manner that something is done. (= I want to know the way) 

 How do you cook paella? 

 How does he know the answer? 

 How can I learn English quickly? 

With HOW there are a number of other expressions that are used in questions: 

How much – refers to a quantity or a price (uncountable nouns) 

 How much time do you have to finish the test? 

 How much is the jacket on display in the window? 

 How much money will I need? 

How many – refers to a quantity (countable nouns) 

 How many days are there in April? 

 How many people live in this city? 

 How many brothers and sister do you have? 

Read more about How much vs. How many. 

How often – refers to frequency 

 How often do you visit your grandmother? 

 How often does she study? 

 How often are you sick? 

How far – refers to distance 

 How far is the university from your house? 

http://www.grammar.cl/english/how-much-how-many.htm


 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

  MODULE 12 

 

English grammar: Future intentions 

Here are some ways you can talk about your future plans and intentions in English. These 

are activities that you know will happen, because you planned them and decided to do 

them. 

Be going to + verb 

Use this to talk about activities you planned before. 

Remember to change "be" to the correct form for the subject: 

I am going to play tennis tomorrow. 

You are going to see your cousin next week. 

He / She is going to get married in September. 

We are going to have a party this weekend. 

They are going to save up for a new car. 

Question form 

As with all verbs that use the verb "to be", change the subject and the form of the verb to 

make questions: 

Am I going to…? 

Are you going to…? 

Is he / she going to…? 

Are we going to…? 

Are they going to…? 

Short replies 

Yes I am / No I'm not 

Yes you are / No you aren't (or No you're not) 

Yes he is / No he isn't 

Yes we are / No we aren't (or No we're not) 

Yes they are / No they aren't (or No they're not) 



 
 
 
 

Negative form 

I am not going to leave my job. 

You aren't going to visit your cousin this week. 

He / She isn't going to get married. 

We aren't going to move house. 

They aren't going to study at university. 

Present Continuous 

We use the Present Continuous to talk about planned appointments and activities. These 

are the types of activities that you write in your diary, for example. We often give a time 

reference. 

Very often, "be going to" and the Present Continuous can be used in the same situations. 

I'm visiting our new office in London this afternoon. (I'm gong to visit our new office…) 

You're meeting the boss tomorrow. (You're going to meet the boss…) 

He / She is working from home next week. (He is going to work from home…) 

We're taking the train to Scotland. (We are going to take the train…) 

They're leaving later today. (They are going to leave…) 

See our grammar page on the Present Continuous to find out more. 

Be planning to / Be thinking of 

You can use the verbs "plan" and "think" in the present continuous is to talk about activities 

that aren't 100% definite. 

I'm planning to study abroad next year. 

We're thinking of getting a dog. 

Remember: "be planning to" is followed by the verb; "be thinking of" is followed by a 

gerund (ing form). 

Review of "will" 

http://www.english-at-home.com/grammar-present-continuous-tense/


 
 
 
 

We can use "will" to talk about the future and make predictions. 

For example: 

"We won't have enough money to buy a new house this year." 

"I think he'll get a promotion next month." 

We can also use "will" to talk about decisions that we make at the time of speaking (NOT 

decisions that we plan before): 

"I'll help you with your bags." (at the moment you see someone with a heavy bag) 

It is wrong to say "I'm going to help you with your bags" or "I'm helping you with your bags" 

in this situation. 

Suggestions 
from English Grammar Today 

If we make a suggestion, it means that we mention a possible course of action to someone. There 
are a number of expressions which we can use to make suggestions. 

How about/what about + -ing? 
How about starting a book club? 
What about opening your present now? 

How about + present simple? 
A: 
How about I pick you up at eight o’clock on my way to the airport? 
B: 
Great. I’ll see you then. 
We often use how about and what about + noun phrase when we make suggestions about food or 
drink. These suggestions are invitations: 
A: 
Are you hungry? 
B: 
Yeah, how about some lunch? 
What about a coffee? 

See also: 

 Invitations 
 How 
 What 
 Supposing 

Why not …? and why don’t …? 
We can use why not to make a general suggestion. We often find it in advertising: 
Why not take a break in the south-west? 

http://dictionary.cambridge.org/grammar/british-grammar/invitations
http://dictionary.cambridge.org/grammar/british-grammar/how
http://dictionary.cambridge.org/grammar/british-grammar/what
http://dictionary.cambridge.org/grammar/british-grammar/conditionals-other-expressions-unless-should-as-long-as


 
 
 
 

Why not treat yourself to a meal at the Icon Restaurant? 
We can use why don’t …? to make a specific suggestion: 
You look really tired. Why don’t you take some time out and rest? 
It’s getting late in the evening now. Why don’t we stop now and work on this tomorrow morning? 

See also: 

 Why 

Let’s … and let’s not … 
We use let’s (let us) to make suggestions about doing something with someone: 
Let’s call Michael and see if he knows how to fix it. 
Let’s make a curry tonight. 
We use let’s not to make negative suggestions: 
Let’s not argue about this. 
Let’s not spend all night talking about my problems. 

See also: 

 Let, let’s 

Could 
We often use phrases with could to make suggestions. Some are neutral, some are strong. The 
negative form, couldn’t, is stronger than the affirmative form: 

Strong 

A: 
I only have three chairs. There will be four of us for dinner. 
B: 
Couldn’t you use the one in your bedroom? 
A: 
I need to finish this essay by tonight. 
B: 
Couldn’t you get up early in the morning to finish it? 

Neutral 

A: 
I have nothing to wear to the party. 
B: 
You could wear your red dress and your black shoes. 
A: 
We’ll need to have at least £300 for the concert tickets, the accommodation and the train. 
B: 
We could cut lawns and wash cars and that kind of thing. Or wecould borrow the money from our 
parents and pay them back. 

See also: 

 Could 

Can’t you …? 
We can use can’t you to make a strong suggestion. It can sound very direct when it is addressed to 
someone who is present: 

[mother to child] 

http://dictionary.cambridge.org/grammar/british-grammar/why
http://dictionary.cambridge.org/grammar/british-grammar/let-let-s
http://dictionary.cambridge.org/grammar/british-grammar/could


 
 
 
 

Can’t you finish your homework before going? 

[a woman is talking about her husband who wants a new television] 

A: 
I think our television is fine. I don’t want it to be replaced really. 
B: 
Mm. 
A: 
And he’ll want one of those wide screens. 
B: 
Oh dear. Can’t he manage with the one you have? 

I thought we might/could 
We can use phrases with I thought we might or I thought we could to make weak suggestions, 
especially when we don’t want to sound too forceful: 
On Saturday, I thought we might go to town and see the Farmers’ Market and then I thought we 
could have lunch in a nice little café by the river. 

You could always 
We can use the phrase you could always or we could always to make weak suggestions: 
A: 
Oh no! We’re out of olive oil. 
B: 
We could always use butter. I know it’s not as healthy, but it’ll taste good. 

There’s always 
We use the phrase there’s always to make very weak suggestions. It is sometimes used when 
someone is trying to cheer someone up or trying to be funny: 
A: 
How did it go? 
B: 
We lost four nil. That’s it for this year. We’re out of the championship now. 
A: 
Don’t worry. There’s always next year. 

[friends are chatting about the Beatles; Paul and Ringo are the names of two of its members] 

A: 
I always liked Paul. 
B: 
I once dreamt that I married Ringo. 
A: 
Oh no! That was a nightmare! 
C: 
There’s always divorce! 
We also use suggest and shall to make suggestions. 

Offers 
from English Grammar Today 

When we offer, we ask someone if they would like to have something or if they would like us to do 
something for them. We usually say yes, pleaseor no, thanks when we reply to offers. 

Offers of food or drinks 



 
 
 
 

A: 
Would you like some cake? 
B: 
Oh yes, please. It looks delicious. 
A: 
Can I get you more juice? 
B: 
No, thanks. 
In more informal offers, we can use want or a noun phrase with a questioning intonation: 
Do you want some more salad, Peter? 
A: 
Want some of my sandwich? 
B: 
No, thanks. 
A: 
Tea? 
B: 
Oh yes, please. 

Offers to do something for someone 

A: 
Shall I wash the car? 
B: 
Oh, that would be great, thanks. 
A: 
Would you like me to walk you home? 
B: 
No, thanks. 
Warning: 
We don’t use the present simple to offer to do something for someone. We most commonly use ’ll: 
I’ll do the ironing if you want. 
Not: I do the ironing … 
Jim’s doing nothing. He’ll walk the dog for you if you like. 

Offers to do something in different situations 

[A is visiting B’s house. B is preparing dinner] 

A: 
Is there anything I can do? 
B: 
Actually yes, you can chop these carrots while I wash the potatoes. 

[in a shop, A is the shop assistant and B is the customer] 

A: 
Can I help you? 
B: 
No, thanks. I’m just looking around. 

[on a telephone helpline] 

A: 



 
 
 
 

Hi my name is Inez. How may I help you? 
B: 
Well, there’s something wrong with my internet connection … 

[at an information desk] 

A: 
What can I do for you? 
B: 
I’m interested in seeing the city centre. Is there a bus tour, or something like that, that I can take? 
When we are almost certain that a person would like something, we can use let me: 
Let me get you some more soup. 
Let me carry your bag. That’s too heavy for you. 
 

 

 

 

 MODULE 13 
 

The infinitive of purpose 
 

A to-infinitive can be used to express purpose: 

I'm calling to place an order for delivery. 

Diya went to the door to open it. 

To pass this test, you need to achieve a score of 60% or more. 

In order and so as can be used before a to-infinitive for emphasis in more formal 

styles: 

He took a book with him in order to have something to read on the train. 

The parties started negotiations so as to reach an agreement as soon as possible. 

In order to attract a wider audience, we need to rethink our marketing strategy. 

The negative is always in order not + to-infinitive or so as not + to-infinitive: 



 
 
 
 

He tiptoed through the hall so as not to be heard. 

In order not to lose time, we must act at once. 

The infinitive of purpose can only be used if the doer of the action expressed by 

the infinitive is the same as the subject of the main clause. If the subjects are 

different, we can use so + that-clause with the present simple tense or with the 

modal verbs may, can, will, might, could orwould: 

Jerry works hard so that his family has everything they need. 

I'll leave the door open so that you can come in. 

Tina gave me a shopping list so that I wouldn't forget anything. 

In order + that-clause is also possible in this case; however, it is more formal and 

less common. In the that-clause, we can use the modal verbs may, shall, 

might or should: 

Our company does everything in order that all complaints may be dealt with fairly 

and effectively. 

With come and go, we can use the infinitive of purpose with the verb in any 

present or past tense or with the gerund form of the verb: 

I'm just coming to help. 

We went to talk to a lawyer. 

Have you thought of going to see a doctor? 

But if come and go are used as infinitives or as imperatives, we use and instead 

of to: 

I must go and check the heater. 

He will come and dance with you. 

Go and fetch a glass. 

The infinitive has two forms: 

 the to-infinitive = to + base 

 the zero infinitive = base 

The present infinitive base is the verb form you will find in a dictionary. 



 
 
 
 

To-infinitive Zero infinitive 

to sit sit 

to eat eat 

to have have 

to remember remember 

The negative infinitive is formed by putting not in front of any form of the infinitive. 

EXAMPLES 

 I decided not to go to London. 

 He asked me not to be late. 

 I'd like you not to sing so loudly. 

 I'd rather not eat meat. 

 I might not come. 

FUNCTIONS OF THE TO-INFINITIVE 

The to-infinitive is used in many sentence constructions, often expressing the purpose of something or 

someone's opinion about something. The to-infinitive is used following a large collection of different verbs as 

well. See this page about verbs followed by infinitives. 

THE TO-INFINITIVE TO INDICATE THE PURPOSE OR INTENTION OF AN ACTION 

In this case to has the same meaning as in order to or so as to. 

EXAMPLES 

 She came to collect her pay cheque. 

 The three bears went to find firewood. 

 I am calling to ask you about dad. 

 You sister has gone to finish her homework. 

THE TO-INFINITIVE AS THE SUBJECT OF THE SENTENCE 

This is a formal usage and is far more common in written English than spoken 

http://www.edufind.com/english-grammar/verbs-followed-infinitives/


 
 
 
 

EXAMPLES 

 To be or not to be, that is the question. 

 To know her is to love her. 

 To visit the Grand Canyon is my life-long dream. 

 To understand statistics, that is our aim. 

THE TO-INFINITIVE TO INDICATE WHAT SOMETHING CAN OR WILL BE USED FOR 

In this pattern, the to-infinitive follows a noun or pronoun. 

EXAMPLES 

 The children need a garden to play in. 

 I would like a sandwich to eat. 
 I don't have anything to wear. 

 Would you like something to drink? 

THE TO-INFINITIVE AFTER ADJECTIVES 

There is a common pattern using the to-infinitive with an adjective. These phrases are formed: 

subject + to be + adjective + (for/of someone) + to-infinitive + (rest of sentence) 

Subject + to be + adjective (+ for/of someone) + to-infinitive (+ rest of sentence) 

It is good   to talk.   

It is good of you to talk to me. 

It is important   to be patient.   

It is important for Jake to be patient with his little brother. 

I am happy   to be here. 

The dog is naughty   to destroy our couch. 



 
 
 
 

THE TO-INFINITIVE TO MAKE A COMMENT OR JUDGEMENT 

To use the to-infinitive when making a comment or judgement about a noun, the pattern is: 

Subject + to be + noun phrase + to-infinitive 

THE TO-INFINITIVE WITH ADVERBS 

The to-infinitive is used frequently with the adverbs too and enough to express the reasoning behind our 

satisfaction or insatisfaction. The pattern is that too and enough are placed before or after the adjective, 

adverb, or noun that they modify in the same way they would be without the to-infinitive. We then follow them 

by the to-infinitive to explain the reason why the quantity is excessive, sufficient, or insufficient. Normally the 

to-infinitive and everything that follows can be removed, leaving a sentence that still functions grammatically. 

EXAMPLES 

 There's too much sugar to put in this bowl. 

 I had too many books to carry. 

 This soup is too hot to eat. 
 She was too tired to work. 

 He arrived too late to see the actors. 

 I've had enough food to eat. 
 She's old enough to make up her own mind. 

 There isn't enough snow to ski on. 

 You're not old enough to have grand-children! 

Subject + to be + noun phrase + to-infinitive 

It was a stupid place to park. 

That is a dangerous way to behave. 

What you said was a rude thing to say. 

This is the right thing to do. 

Those were the wrong kind of eggs to buy. 

Jim is the best person to hire. 



 
 
 
 

THE TO-INFINITIVE WITH QUESTION WORDS 

The verbs ask, decide, explain, forget, know, show, tell, & understand can be followed by a question word 

such as where, how, what, who, & when + the to-infinitive. 

EXAMPLES 

 She asked me how to use the washing machine. 

 Do you understand what to do? 

 Tell me when to press the button. 

 I've forgotten where to put this little screw. 

 I'm not sure I know who to call. 

FUNCTIONS OF THE ZERO INFINITIVE 

THE ZERO INFINITIVE AFTER AUXILIARIES 

EXAMPLES 

 She can't speak to you. 

 He should give her some money. 

 Shall I talk to him? 

 Would you like a cup of coffee? 

 I might stay another night in the hotel. 

 They must leave before 10.00 a.m. 

THE ZERO INFINITIVE AFTER VERBS OF PERCEPTION 

With verbs of perception, the pattern is verb + object + zero infinitive. 

EXAMPLES 

 He saw her fall from the cliff. 

 We heard them close the door. 

 They saw us walk toward the lake. 

 She felt the spider crawl up her leg. 

THE ZERO INFINITIVE AFTER THE VERBS 'MAKE' AND 'LET' 

EXAMPLES 

 Her parents let her stay out late. 

 Let's go to the cinema tonight. 

 You made me come with you. 



 
 
 
 

 Don't make me study that boring grammar book! 

THE ZERO INFINITIVE AFTER THE EXPRESSION 'HAD BETTER' 

EXAMPLES 

 We had better take some warm clothing. 

 She had better ask him not to come. 

 We had better reserve a room in the hotel. 

 You'd better give me your address. 

 They had better work harder on their homework. 

THE ZERO INFINITIVE WITH "WHY" 

The question word why is followed by the zero infinitive when making suggestions. 

EXAMPLES 

 Why wait until tomorrow? 

 Why not ask him now? 

 Why leave before the end of the game? 

 Why walk when we can go in the car? 

 Why not buy a new bed? 

 

 

 

May and Might are modal verbs. They can normally be interchanged without a significant difference in 

meaning however Might often implies a smaller chance of something happening (when expressing 

possibility). 

May and Might 

1. To express (future) possibility 

There is a chance that something is true or that there is a possibility of something happening. 

Note: Might is used more frequently than May in spoken English. 

 It might rain later (= it is possible that it will rain) 

 I might go to the movies tonight. (Though I'm not sure) 

 I wouldn't talk to Tim right now. He may still be angry after his team lost. 

 He's very good, in fact, I think he may win the competition. 



 
 
 
 

 She might be late because of the public transport strike. 

2. To give permission 

 You may leave the table once you have finished your meal. 

 You may take only one brochure. 

 If you have finished the exam, you may leave the room. 

May not can be used to NOT give permission or to prohibit someone from doing something. 

 You may not park your car in front of the gate. 

 You may not take more than one brochure. 

3. To ask for permission 

Note: Can is used more frequently than May in spoken English though May sounds more polite. 

 May I sit next to you? 

 May I borrow your pen? 

 May I use your bathroom please? 

Note: Might could also be used to request permission but it sounds very old and is not common. 

4. May: to talk about typical occurrences 

May is used in academic (or scientific) language to refer to things that typically happen in certain 

situations. 

 Drivers may feel tired if they do not take a break every 2 hours. 

 Adults may find it difficult to sleep if they use technology before going to bed. 

 These tablets may produce serious side effects if not taken in the correct dosage. 

5. Speculate about past actions (May + have + past participle) 

 She is late. I think she may have missed her plane. 

 It may have already been broken before you bought it. 

 What was that noise? It may have been a dog outside our window. 

6. To express wishes 

 May you both live a long and happy life together. 

 May the New Year bring you love and happiness. 

 May all your wishes come true. 



 
 
 
 

 May the odds be ever in your favor. 

 May the Force be with you. :) 

 

May as well - Might as well 

These are expressions can be used to suggest that you will do something because there is nothing 

better or more interesting to do. 

 There is nothing on TV. I might as well go to bed. 

 (At the stadium) Our team is losing by 50 points. We may as well go home because they're not 

going to win. 

will  
 

We use will: 

 to talk about the future – to say what we believe will happen 

 to talk about what people want to do or are willing to do 



 
 
 
 

 to make promises and offers 

would is the past tense form of will. Because it is a past tense it is used: 

 to talk about the past. 

 to talk about hypotheses – things that are imagined rather than true. 

 for politeness. 

Beliefs 

We use will 

 to say what we believe will happen in the future: 

We'll be late. 

We will have to take the train. 

We use would as the past tense of will: 

 to say what we believed would happen: 

I thought I would be late …… so I would have to take the train. 

Offers and promises 

We use I will or We will to make offers and promises: 

I’ll give you a lift home after the party. 

We will come and see you next week. 

Willingness 

 to talk about what people want to do or are willing to do: 

We’ll see you tomorrow. 

Perhaps dad will lend me the car. 

We use would as the past tense of will: 

 to talk about what people wanted to do or were willing to do: 

We had a terrible night. The baby wouldn’t go to sleep. He kept waking up and 

crying. 

Dad wouldn’t lend me the car, so we had to take the train. 



 
 
 
 

 to talk about something that we did often in the past because we wanted to do it: 

When they were children they used to spend their holidays at their grandmother’s at 

the seaside. They would get up early every morning and they’d have a quick 

breakfast then they would run across the road to the beach. 

Conditionals 

We use will in conditionals with if and unless to say what we think will happen in the 

future or present: 

I’ll give her a call if I can find her number. 

You won’t get in unless you have a ticket. 

We use would to talk about hypotheses, about something which is possible but not real: 

 to talk about the result or effect of a possible situation: 

It would be very expensive to stay in a hotel. 

 in conditionals with words like if and what if. In these sentences the main verb is usually 

in thepast tense: 

I would give her a call if I could find her number. 

If I had the money I'd buy a new car. 

You would lose weight if you took more exercise. 

If he got a new job he would probably make more money. 

What if he lost his job. What would happen then? 

We use conditionals to give advice: 

Dan will help you if you ask him. 

Past tenses are more polite: 

Dan would help you if you asked him. 

Phrases with would: 

 would you…, would you mind (not) -ing, for requests: 

Would you carry this for me please? 

Would you mind carrying this? 

Would you mind not telling him that? 

 would you like ...; would you like to ...,  for offers and invitations: 



 
 
 
 

Would you like to come round to morrow? 

Would you like another drink? 

 I would like …; I’d like … (you)(to) ..., to say what we want or what we want to do: 

I’d like that one please. 

I’d like to go home now. 

 I’d rather… (I would rather) to say what we prefer: 

I’d rather have that one. 

I’d rather go home now. 

 I would think, I would imagine, I'd guess, to give an opinion when we are not sure or 

when we want to be polite: 

It’s very difficult I would imagine. 

I would think that’s the right answer. 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 


